
        

 

 

THOUSAND OAKS 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
The Thousand Oaks Community Development District is a special purpose unit of local government created under 
Florida Law, chapter 190, for the purpose of financing, constructing, operating, and maintaining community-wide 

infrastructure, improvements, and services for the benefit of the properties within its boundaries. 

 
PALM BEACH COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 14, 2022 
4:15 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.thousandoakscdd.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



 
AGENDA 

THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
Thousand Oaks HOA Office 

1034 Center Stone Lane 
Riviera Beach, Florida 33404 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
March 14, 2022 

4:15 p.m. 
 
 

 
A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………………...Page 1  

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

E. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

F. Approval of Minutes  

1. February 7, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes...……………………………………………..Page 3 

G. Old Business 

1. Consider Approval of Tree Trimming Proposals…………………………………………………Page 7 

2. Update on Logos for Shirts 

3. Memo Regarding Construction and Maintenance of a Putting Green on District Property………Page 13 

4. Update on Fountain Light Fixtures 

5. Update on Preserve Site Visit Report 

H. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2022-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Proposed Budget………Page 22 

I. Administrative Matters 

J. Board Members Comments 

K. Adjourn 

 



Page 1



Page 2



Page 1 of 4 
 

THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

FEBRUARY 7, 2022 
 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The February 7, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the Thousand Oaks Community Development District 
(the “District”) was called to order at 4:28 p.m. in the Thousand Oaks HOA Office located at 1034 Center 
Stone Lane, Riviera Beach, Florida 33404. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published in The 
Palm Beach Post on October 6, 2021, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Regular Board 
Meeting, as legally required.  
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
A quorum was established by the presence of Chairman Jeff Jackson, Supervisors Malachi Knowles and 
Rance Gaede. 
  
Staff present included District Managers Andrew Karmeris and Sylvia Bethel of Special District Services, 
Inc.; and Frank Palen, District Attorney. 
 
Also present were District residents Horace Towns and Ronal Jewel. 
 
D. CONSIDER APPOINTMENT TO BOARD VACANCY 
 
Mr. Karmeris explained that Mr. Knowles had requested this item be moved to the beginning of the agenda 
due to two Board seats being vacant. 
 
Mr. Jackson would like to reorder the agenda items as follows… agenda item (G) Additions or Deletions 
to the Agenda to item (D) Consider Appointment to Board Vacancy, item I Approval of Minutes to item 
(E) Administer Oath of Office, item (D) Consider Appointment Board Vacancy to item (F) Election of 
Officers, item (E) Administer Oath of Office to item (G) Additions or Deletions to the Agenda, item (F) 
Election of Officers to item (H) Comments from the Public, and item (H) Comments from the Public to 
item (I) Approval of Minutes.  
 
A motion was made by Mr. Knowles, seconded by Mr. Gaede, and unanimously passed approving the 
reorder of agenda items, as presented. 
 
E. ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE AND REVIEW BOARD MEMBER DUTIES & 
RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
This item was not necessary at this time. 
 
F. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 

Page 3



Page 2 of 4 
 

Mr. Jackson asked why this was on the agenda.  Mr. Karmeris noted, per Mr. Knowles’ request and due to 
Mr. Knowles and Mr. Gaede being Assistant Supervisors. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Knowles, seconded by Mr. Jackson, and unanimously passed approving Mr. 
Gaede being designated as Vice Chairperson. 
 
A motion was then made by Mr. Gaede, seconded by Mr. Jackson, and unanimously passed approving Mr. 
Knowles being designated as Secretary/Treasurer. 
 
A motion was then made by Mr. Knowles, seconded by Mr. Gaede, and unanimously passed approving 
Ms. Bethel and Mr. Karmeris being designated as Assistant Secretary and Assistant Treasurer.  Mr. 
Karmeris will serve as backup. 
 
G. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
H. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments from the public for items not on the agenda. 
 
I. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 1.  December 13, 2021, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the December 13, 2021, Regular Board Meeting were presented for approval.   
 
A motion was made by Mr. Knowles, seconded by Mr. Gaede and passed unanimously approving the 
December 13, 2021, Regular Board Meeting minutes, as presented. 
 
J. OLD BUSINESS 
 1.  Discussion Regarding District Mission Statement 
 
Mr. Karmeris advised that Mr. Palen had approved all mission statements. The Board agreed to adopt the 
following mission statement: 
 

“The Thousand Oaks Community Development District is a special purpose unit of local 
government created under Florida Law, chapter 190, for the purpose of financing, 
constructing, operating, and maintaining community-wide infrastructure, improvements, 
and services for the benefit of the properties within its boundaries.” 

 
Mr. Palen suggested posting the Statement on the website.  Mr. Knowles requested adding the mission 
statement to the cover page of the meeting books. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Knowles, seconded by Mr. Gaede, and unanimously passed approving the 
Mission Statement. 
 

2.  Consider Tree Trimming Proposals 
 

Page 4



Page 3 of 4 
 

Mr. Karmeris advised that he was waiting on one more proposal because the vendor has been very busy, 
but has promised to provide a proposal as soon as possible.  The Board decided to table this item until the 
second proposal is received. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Knowles, seconded by Mr. Gaede, and unanimously passed approving the 
tabling of the tree trimming proposals until the next meeting. 
 

3.  Update on Logos for Shirts 
 
Mr. Karmeris advised that, after discussions with legal counsel, this was an item the District was authorized 
to purchase.  The Board would have to approve a logo for their shirts.  Mr. Knowles stated he knew someone 
who could design a logo.  He would provide their contact information to Mr. Karmeris or Ms. Bethel. 
 
K. NEW BUSINESS 
 1.  Memo Regarding Construction and Maintenance of a Putting Green on District Property 
 
At its December 2021 Meeting, the Board of Supervisors considered a proposal to construct and maintain 
a recreation facility (a golf putting green) on real property owned by the District. Mr. Palen confirmed that, 
while the District had the statutory authority to construct and maintain recreation facilities, it did not 
currently have the power to assess landowners for that purpose. The Attorney advised that in order to 
construct and maintain recreation facilities, The District would have to amend the District’s Assessment 
Methodology Report pursuant to Chapter 190 F.S. Prior to initiating this lengthy process, a determination 
should be made if the property can in fact be used for recreation purposes. The parcel of land identified for 
a putting green lies within a conservation area subject to a Conservation Easement in favor of South Florida 
Water Management District (SFWMD) limiting its use. Experience suggests that SFWMD will be reluctant 
to release some or part of the land from the restrictive covenant. The District Engineer should be consulted 
to determine the possibility of obtaining a release. Mr. Palen suggested deferring further efforts to amend 
the District Assessment Methodology Report until it is determined if the property can be used for the desired 
purpose.  
 
A lengthy discussion ensued and the Board directed Staff to meet with Mr. Knowles and the District 
Engineer to review the possibility of SFWMD releasing the covenant.   
 

2.  Consider Fountain Light Fixture Proposals 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Knowles, seconded by Mr. Gaede and passed unanimously approving the 
fountain light fixture proposal from Palm Beach Aquatics in the amount of $8,636.50. 
 
 3.  Preserve Site Visit Report 
 
Mr. Karmeris advised that there were only two homes that encroached CDD property (see Inventory, photo 
numbers 9 and 10). The Board directed staff to contact the City of Rivera Beach Code Enforcement to have 
inspectors visit the homes. After the City inspections, District Counsel can send correspondence to the 
affected residents informing them of the encroachment on District property and demanding removal.  
 
L. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
  
Mr. Karmeris gave am update on the grass carp permit.  He noted that everything had been submitted by 
the District and we are just awaiting finalization of the permit. 

Page 5



Page 4 of 4 
 

 
M. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Knowles and Mr. Jackson would like staff to schedule a site visit of the dry land preserve area to 
determine if homes are encroaching on District property.    
 
N. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Mr. Jackson adjourned the meeting at 5:48 p.m.  
There were no objections. 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________________________ __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair 

Page 6



From: JOHN RUSS <john_a_russ@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Thursday, March 3, 2022 7:37 PM 
To: Sylvia Bethel <sbethel@sdsinc.org> 
Subject: Proposal for Conservation #1tree trimming at Thousand Oaks 

Russ Total Lawn Maintenance L.L.C. 
1731 Ave F. 
 Riviera Beach Fl. 33404 
John Russ  
 
Thousand Oaks CDD,  
The following is the proposal for the tree trimming at 1034 Center Stone Lane in Riviera Beach. 
If you should have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me at:  (561) 319-7110.  
 
Tree Trimming Proposal Introduction 
 
This document proposes that Russ Total Lawn Maintenance will perform the necessary Tree 
Trimming in an effort to maintain the beauty of the property. The goal is to maintain a 
conspicuous landscape for residents and visitors. 

R.T.L.M. will be responsible for the following deliverables. 
 

Deliverables  

Conservation Area #1 

 Raising the canopy on all low hanging Live Oak and other trees throughout designated 
area 

 Intercept all branches protruding toward buildings at lease 10 feet 
 Hurricane prune all Palm trees 
 Trim and reshape Coco Plums to at least 5ft in height 
 Remove any dead or diseased trees or branches 
 Dispose of all existing and generated debris 

 
Compensation 
 
 Our complete price for this project base on the deliverables outlined is, $23,500.00 
 

Thanks again for allowing Russ Total Lawn Maintenance to submit this proposal. Our company 
is small enough to give your property the attention it deserves and yet we are large enough to 
handle the equipment and labor necessary to do the job right and on time! 

 

Page 7



From: JOHN RUSS <john_a_russ@yahoo.com>  
Sent: Thursday, March 3, 2022 7:44 PM 
To: Sylvia Bethel <sbethel@sdsinc.org> 
Subject: Conservation #2 Tree trimming at Thousand Oaks 
 
Russ Total Lawn Maintenance L.L.C. 
1731 Ave F. 
 Riviera Beach Fl. 33404 
John Russ  
 
Thousand Oaks CDD,  
The following is the proposal for the tree trimming at 1034 Center Stone Lane in Riviera Beach. 
If you should have any questions please do not hesitate to contact me at:  (561) 319-7110.  
 
Tree Trimming Proposal Introduction 
 
This document proposes that Russ Total Lawn Maintenance will perform the necessary Tree 
Trimming in an effort to maintain the beauty of the property. The goal is to maintain a 
conspicuous landscape for residents and visitors. 
R.T.L.M. will be responsible for the following deliverables. 
 

 
Deliverables  
 
Conservation Area #2 
 

 Raising the canopy on all low hanging Live Oak, Mango and other trees throughout 
designated area 

 Intercept all branches protruding toward buildings at lease 10 feet 
 Hurricane prune all Palm trees 
 Remove any dead or diseased trees or branches 
 Dispose of all existing and generated debris 

 
 
Compensation 
 
 Our complete price for this project base on the deliverables outlined is, $12,500.00 
 

Thanks again for allowing Russ Total Lawn Maintenance to submit this proposal. Our company 
is small enough to give your property the attention it deserves and yet we are large enough to 
handle the equipment and labor necessary to do the job right and on time! 
 

Page 8



Estimate
Date

12/7/2021

Estimate No.

10709

Customer Name/Address

Thousand Oaks CDD
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
2501-A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 Payment Method

Due on receipt

Only Trees Rep.

Leo(561)262-9555

Signature

561-747-8050

Fax #

561-741-1098

E-mail

onlytrees@bellsouth.net

TotalThank you for your time and
consideration.  We look forward to

hearing from you soon.

Certified Arborist:
Teri Davis FL-6004A

Steve Vecchio FL-1097A
Brandon McMullen FL-6009A

Leo Erripa FL-9623A

PO Box 7144
Jupiter, FL  33468

Item Description Location Qty Rate Total
CONSERVATION AREA #2 (FROM
BUILDING 3245 TO 3181 LAUREL
RIDGE CIR)

Oak Tree cl... Oak Trees and Mango Tree-clean, thin
and raise canopy; provide a 10 foot
clearance from structures

34 175.00 5,950.00

Sabal Palms Sabal Palms trimmed 29 50.00 1,450.00

TERMS:
Clean Clean: Selective pruning to remove one

or more of the following parts: dead,
diseased, and/or broken branches
(Dead branches to be removed will
be1.5 inches in diameter or more, as
measured at the base of the branch )

Thin Thin: Selective pruning to reduce
density of live branches

Raise Raise: Selective pruning to provide
vertical clearance

Palm Trees The Palm Trees will be trimmed at the
9-3 o'clock level. The seed pods and
fruit will be removed.

Page 1
Page 9



Estimate
Date

12/7/2021

Estimate No.

10709

Customer Name/Address

Thousand Oaks CDD
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
2501-A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 Payment Method

Due on receipt

Only Trees Rep.

Leo(561)262-9555

Signature

561-747-8050

Fax #

561-741-1098

E-mail

onlytrees@bellsouth.net

TotalThank you for your time and
consideration.  We look forward to

hearing from you soon.

Certified Arborist:
Teri Davis FL-6004A

Steve Vecchio FL-1097A
Brandon McMullen FL-6009A

Leo Erripa FL-9623A

PO Box 7144
Jupiter, FL  33468

Item Description Location Qty Rate Total
Ansi A300 All work performed by Only Trees, LLC

will be in accordance with the American
National Standards Institute (ANSI)
A300 Standard for Tree Care
Operations unless otherwise noted.

Debris Complete clean-up and debris removal
is included in this estimate/invoice.

W/C Cert. Our Workers Comp. and General
Liability Insurance certificates will be
faxed to you directly from our carrier
upon your request and  acceptance of
this proposal.

Signature of... Upon the acceptance please sign this
service agreement and fax or e-mail it
back to our office.

Page 2

_____________________________________

$7,400.00

Page 10



Estimate
Date

12/7/2021

Estimate No.

10708

Customer Name/Address

Thousand Oaks CDD
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
2501-A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 Payment Method

Due on receipt

Only Trees Rep.

Leo(561)262-9555

Signature

561-747-8050

Fax #

561-741-1098

E-mail

onlytrees@bellsouth.net

TotalThank you for your time and
consideration.  We look forward to

hearing from you soon.

Certified Arborist:
Teri Davis FL-6004A

Steve Vecchio FL-1097A
Brandon McMullen FL-6009A

Leo Erripa FL-9623A

PO Box 7144
Jupiter, FL  33468

Item Description Location Qty Rate Total
CONSERVATION AREA  #1

Oak Tree cl... Live Oak Trees and Holly Trees-clean,
thin and raise canopy, provide a 6-10
foot clearance from structures

137 175.00 23,975.00

Sabal Palms Sabal Palms trimmed 33 50.00 1,650.00

Coco Plum Coco Plum Clusters trimmed- reduce
and reshape just above the old cuts (5
feet0

82 150.00 12,300.00

TERMS:
Clean Clean: Selective pruning to remove one

or more of the following parts: dead,
diseased, and/or broken branches
(Dead branches to be removed will
be1.5 inches in diameter or more, as
measured at the base of the branch )

Thin Thin: Selective pruning to reduce
density of live branches

Raise Raise: Selective pruning to provide
vertical clearance

Page 1
Page 11



Estimate
Date

12/7/2021

Estimate No.

10708

Customer Name/Address

Thousand Oaks CDD
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
2501-A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 Payment Method

Due on receipt

Only Trees Rep.

Leo(561)262-9555

Signature

561-747-8050

Fax #

561-741-1098

E-mail

onlytrees@bellsouth.net

TotalThank you for your time and
consideration.  We look forward to

hearing from you soon.

Certified Arborist:
Teri Davis FL-6004A

Steve Vecchio FL-1097A
Brandon McMullen FL-6009A

Leo Erripa FL-9623A

PO Box 7144
Jupiter, FL  33468

Item Description Location Qty Rate Total
Reduce Reduce: Selective pruning to decrease

height and/or spread (consideration
must be given to the ability of a species
to tolerate reduction pruning).

Ansi A300 All work performed by Only Trees, LLC
will be in accordance with the American
National Standards Institute (ANSI)
A300 Standard for Tree Care
Operations unless otherwise noted.

Debris Complete clean-up and debris removal
is included in this estimate/invoice.

W/C Cert. Our Workers Comp. and General
Liability Insurance certificates will be
faxed to you directly from our carrier
upon your request and  acceptance of
this proposal.

Signature of... Upon the acceptance please sign this
service agreement and fax or e-mail it
back to our office.

Page 2

_____________________________________

$37,925.00

Page 12



From: Jeff Schnars <jeff@schnars.com>  
Sent: Thursday, February 10, 2022 8:03 PM 
To: Sylvia Bethel <sbethel@sdsinc.org> 
Subject: RE: Thousand Oaks  

 
Sylvia, 
Per our discussion today, I understand that the request is to put a golf putting green in the conservation 
easement.  Attached is a copy of the conservation easement.  I do not see how that is possible given the 
easement restrictions.  Assuming that the community wants to construct additional recreation facilities 
outside the conservation easement, it would seem that is an issue for the HOA and not the CDD. 
 
Thank you. 
Jeff 
 
Jeffrey T. Schnars, P.E. 
President 
jeff@schnars.com 

 

947 Clint Moore Road 
Boca Raton, Florida 33487 
Office: 561‐241‐6455 
Fax: 561‐241‐5182 
Toll Free: 888‐285‐3886 
www.schnars.com  

 

Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



RESOLUTION NO. 2022-01 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
APPROVING A PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the Thousand Oaks Community 
Development District (“District”) is required by Chapter 190.008, Florida Statutes, to approve a 
Proposed Budget for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2022/2023 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE THOUSAND OAKS COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2022/2023 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.       A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for             , 2022 at 
4:15 p.m. in the Thousand Oaks HOA Office located at 1034 Center Stone Lane, Riviera Beach, 
Florida 34404, for the purpose of receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal Year 
2022/2023 Budget. 
 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 14th day of March, 2022. 
 

 
ATTEST: THOUSAND OAKS 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 

Page 22



     Thousand Oaks
 Community Development District

       Proposed Budget For
       Fiscal Year 2022/2023

           October 1, 2022 - September 30, 2023

Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28


	Thousand Oaks Community Development District -March 14, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	February 7, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Approval of Tree Trimming Proposals
	Memo Regarding Construction and Maintenance of a Putting Green on District Property
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-01 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Proposed Budget




